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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Equal Justice America, Inc., which comprise
the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of
activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal conirol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the andits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial staiements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

2900 Westchester Avenue, Purchase, New York 10577-2537 914/253-8484 Fax: 914/253-8087



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Equal Justice America, Inc., as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 8 to the financial statements, in 2020, the entity received an unsecured loan in the
amount of $82,200, due to the Small Business Administration (SBA) and administered by a local bank,
as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP). In February 2021, the entity received notification from the SBA that the entire $82,200
loan balance was forgiven. Our conclusion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Blorw mmdl it il

BLOOM AND STREITLLP
Certified Public Accountants
March 9, 2021

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

?BLOOM AND STREIT LLP



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Statements of Financial Position

As of June 30,

2020 2019
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 233,253 139,830
Investments 150,000 0
Prepaid Expenses 2,646 1,659
Miscellanecous Receivables 3,459 799
Promises to Give (Net) 116,928 61,845
TOTAL ASSETS 506,286 204,133
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 12,606 15,118
Credit Card Payable 12,623 4,435
Grants Payable 401,987 488,331
Loans Payable 232,200 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 659,416 507,884
NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions (602,080) (347,732)
With Donor Restrictions 448,950 43,981
TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (153,130) (303,751)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 506,286 204,133

See accompanying notes and auditors' report
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EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

Statements of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30,

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUE AND PUBLIC SUPPORT

Contributions

Other Income

Interest Income

Net Assets Released from Restrictions
Total Revenue and Public Support

EXPENSES

Program Expenses - Grants and Fellowships

Fundraising Expenses

General and Administrative Expenses
Total Expenses

Decrease in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Contributions
Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Increase in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Net Assets (Deficit) - Beginning of Year

Net Assets (Deficit) - End of Year

See accompanying notes and auditors' report
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2020 2019
506,746 1,003,029
10,000 0
40 89
249,833 0
766,619 1,003,118
594,849 813,829
270,381 263,255
155,737 246,586
1,020,967 1,323,670
(254,348) (320,552)
654,802 43,981
(249,833) 0
404,969 43,981
150,621 (276,571)
(303,751) (27,180)
(153,130) (303,751)




EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 150,621 (276,571)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net
assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Decrease (Increase) in operating assets:
Prepaid Expenses (987) (1,659)
Miscellaneous Receivables (2,660) (799)
Promises to Give (Net) (55,083) 92,155
Increase (Decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts Payable (2,512) 13,668
Credit Card Payable 8,188 - 4,435
Grants Payable (86,344) 183,056
Net cash provided by operating activities 11,223 14,285
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of Investments (150,000) 0
Net cash used by investing activities (150,000) 0
Cash Flows From Financing Activities ‘
Loan Proceeds Received 232,200 0
Net cash provided by financing activities 232,200 0
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 93,423 14,285
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 139,830 125,545
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 233,253 139,830
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest Paid N/A N/A

See accompanying notes and auditors' report
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EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

(rants and Fellowships
Salaries
Benefit Expense
Payroll Taxes
Consulting and Professional Fees
Conferences
Mailing List
Insurance
Advertising and Marketing
Occupancy Expense
Telephone
Office Expenses and Supplies
Computer and Website Expense
Printing and Postage
Dues, Licenses and Subscriptions
Merchant and Bank Fees

Total Expenses

Schedule of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

General and

Program Fundraising Admin, Total - 2020
430,617 0 0 430,617
117,659 198,725 65,951 382,335

9,935 2,694 5,995 18,624
10,148 17,913 5,728 33,789
0 0 20,099 20,099

21 0 0 21

0 15,645 0 15,645

656 656 656 1,968

0 4,281 4,280 8,561
8,330 8,330 8,330 24,990
3,361 3,360 3,361 10,082
1,004 1,004 2,315 4,323
11,465 11,466 11,466 34,397
1,573 6,227 1,574 9,374
80 80 183 343

0 0 25,799 25,799
594,849 270,381 155,737 1,020,967

See accompanying notes and auditors' report
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EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Schedule of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General and

Program Fundraising Admin. Total - 2019

Grants and Fellowships 680,124 0 0 680,124
Salaries 88,782 171,008 141,604 401,394
Benefit Expense 5,222 2,716 8,004 15,942
Payroll Taxes 7,522 14,963 12,307 34,792
Consulting and Professional Fees 0 0 15,178 15,178
Conferences 1,050 0 0 1,050
Mailing List 0 24,629 0 24,629
Insurance 163 164 163 490
Advertising and Marketing 0 11,857 11,857 23,714
Occupancy Expense 7,610 7,611 7,612 22,833
Telephone 3,525 3,526 3,526 10,577
Office Expenses and Supplies 3,826 3,825 5,198 12,849
Computer and Website Expense 11,417 15,762 11,418 38,597
Printing and Postage 1,189 3,796 1,188 6,173
Dues, Licenses and Subscriptions 3,399 3,398 3,749 10,546
Merchant and Bank Fees 0 0 24,782 24,782

Total Expenses 813,829 263,255 246,586 1,323,670

See aceompanying notes and auditors' report
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EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

Comparative Schedule of Functional Expenses

Grants and Fellowships

Salaries

Benefit Expense

Payroll Taxes

Consulting and Professional Fees
Conferences

Mailing List

Insurance

Advertising and Marketing
Occupancy Expense

Telephone

Office Expenses and Supplies
Computer and Website Expense
Printing and Postage

Dues, Licenses and Subscriptions
Merchant and Bank Fees
Total Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019
430,617 680,124
382,335 401,394

18,624 15,942
33,789 34,792
20,099 15,178
21 1,050
15,645 24,629
1,968 490
8,561 23,714
24,990 22,833
10,082 10,577
4,323 12,849
34,397 38,597
9,374 6,173
343 10,546
25,799 24,782
1,020,967 1,323,670

See accompanying notes and auditors' report
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Note 1

Note 2

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Nature of Activities :
Equal Justice America, Inc. (the organization) is a non-profit organization that
provides grants to legal services that deliver civil assistance to the poor.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, Equal Justice America, Inc.

considers all highly liquid debt instruments, purchased with a maturity of three
months or less, to be cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

It is the organization's policy to capitalizesignificant expenditures for property
and equipment. Lesser amounts are expensed. Purchased property and
equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are
recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are
reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire
property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Depreciation
is being computed by the straight line method over five to seven years for
accounting and income tax purposes.

Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give (pledges), less an allowance for uncollectible
amounts where applicable, are recognized as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions when the pledge is made.

8-



Note 2

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
Centributed Services

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for contributed
services. Many individuals volunteer their time to assist the organization, but
these services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services.

Net Assets
Net assets of the organization are classified based upon the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions, as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are therefore,
available for the general operations of the organization.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will be met either
by actions of the organization and/or the passage of time. As such restrictions
are satisfied, net assets with donor restriction are reclassified to net assets
without donor restriction in the accompanying statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions.

Contributions

Contributions are reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received.
Contributions received are recorded as net asset with donor restrictions if they
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donations.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are

attributable to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these
expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied.
The expenses that are allocated include expenses related to employece
compensation and benefits, occupancy expenses, office expenses and
insurance which are all allocated on the basis of estimates time and effort.

-0



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 2 Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Tax Status

Equal Justice America, Inc. is a Not-For-Profit organization exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(¢)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and, therefore, has made no provision for federal income taxes on the
accompanying financial statements. In addition, Equal Justice America, Inc.
has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a "Private
Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509 (a) of the Internal Revenue
Code.

Note 3 Concentrations of Credit Risk
Equal Justice America, Inc. maintains various bank and money market accounts that
at times may exceed insured credit limits. The organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk
with respect to such balances.

Note 4 Investments and Fair Value Measurements
Investments are stated at fair value and consisted of the following at
December 31:
2020 2019
US Government Securities -0- -0-
Mutual Funds 150,000 -0-
Equities -0- -0-
Total 150,000 -0-

Purchases of marketable securities are initially recorded at cost; donated
securities are recorded at fair value on the date of the contribution. Realized
and unrealized gains and losses are recorded separately in the statement of
activities. Investment fees have been netted against investment income in the
statement of activities.

The organization values its investments at fair value, based on prices provided
to it by its custodian. In determining fair value, the highest priority is given to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority fo unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements).

-10-



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Note 4 Investments and Fair Value Measurements - continued
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical investments in
active markets

Level 2: Other significant observable inputs (including quoted
prices for similar investments, interest rates, credit risk,
etc.)

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs

The following is a summary of the inputs used in valuing the organization's
investments at December 31

2020 2019
Level 1 150,000 -0-
Level 2 (- ~(-
Level 3 -0- ~0-
Total 150,000 -0-

The organization invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are
exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level
of risk associated with investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that
changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such
changes could materially affect the organization's statement of financial position.

Note 5 Promises to Give (Net)

Promises to Give (Net) are recorded when the pledge is made by the donor.
Asof June 30, 2020 and 2019, the organization has received pledges of
$160,935 and $85,040, respectively, and has provided an allowance for
doubiful accounts on these promises of $44,007 and $23,195, respectively, for
amounts not expected to be collected. All other pledges are expected to be
received within one year.

-I1-



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Note 6 Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2020 2019
Furniture and Equipment 1,185 1,185
Machinery and equipment 28.616 28.616
Subtotal 29,801 28,801
Less: Accumulated depreciation 29,801 28.801
-0- -0-

Property and equipment is fully depreciated for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Note 7 Grants Pavable
The organization provides Grants, which at times provide for payments extending over a

number of years. Asof June 30, 2020 and 2019, $130,000 and $156,000 of Grants Payable
are to be paid beyond a period of twelve months from the balance sheet date, during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Note 8 Loans Pavable
On April 20, 2020 the organization was granted a loan from Village Bank, N.A. in the

amount of $82,200, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Plan (the "PPP") under
Division A, Title 1 of the CARES Act, which was enacted March 27, 2020.

The loan which was in the form of a note dated April 20, 2020 issued by the borrower,
matures April 20, 2022 and bears interest at a rate of 1% per annum, payable monthly
commencing on November 20, 2020 with monthly payments of approximately
$4,627. The note may be prepaid by the borrower at any time prior to maturity with
no prepayment penalties. Funds from the loan may only be used for payroll costs,
costs used to continue group health care benefits, mortgage payments, rent, utilities
and interest on other debt obligations incurred before February 15, 2020. The
organization intends to use the entire loan amount for qualifying expenses. Under the

" terms of the PPP, certain amounts of the loan may be forgiven if they are used for
qualifying expenses as described in the CARES Act.

On February 26, 2021, the organization received notification from the SBA
that the entire loan balance of $82,200 has been forgiven.
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EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Note 8 Loans Pavable - continued
On May 21, 2020 the organization was granted an Economic Injury Disaster loan
through the U.S. Small Business Administration in the amount of $150,000. The loan
bears interest at a rate of 2.75% and matures May 21, 2050. Monthly payments of
$641 are due beginning May 2021 and will be applied first to interest and the
remainder to the outstanding principal.

Note 9 Net Assets with Donor Restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to the following purpose or time restrictions.

2020 019

Subject to purpose restrictions:
Specific university/college fellowships and grants 448,950 43.981

Total net assets with donor restrictions 448,950 43,981

Note 10 Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets
The following reflects the organization's financial assets as of the balance
sheets date, reduced by amounts not available for general use because of
contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the balance sheets

date.
2020 2019
Financial Assets at year end 503,640 202,474
Less those unavailable for
general expenditures within
one year, due to:
Donor-restrictions for specific
university/college fellowships
and grants (448.950) ( 43.981)
Financial Assets available to
meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year 54,690 158,493

Ags part of its liquidity management, the organization maintains excess cash in
a savings account and mutual funds.
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Note 11

Note 12

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Operat_ing Lease
The organization leases office space under an operating lease which ran from

September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019. Since that time the organization
leases the space monthly. The monthly rental expense is approximately
$1,912 per month.

Subseguent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 9, 2021, the date

at which the financial statements became available for issuance. No events
have occurred that would require adjustments to, or disclosure in, the financial
statements.
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EQUAL 04/19/2021 1:12 PM

IRS e-file Signature Authorization
Form 83879-EO for an Exempt Organization OVE Mo To451978
For calendar year 2019, or fiscal year beginning _ 7/ O 1 , 2019, and ending 6 / 3 O L 20 2 O
Department of the Treasury » Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 201 9
intamal Revenun Servica P Go to www.irs.govw/Form8879E0 for the latest information.
Name of exempt organization Employer identiflcation number
EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596
Name and title of officer DAVI D SANTACROCE
PRESIDENT
Part | Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)

Check the box for the retum for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the retum. If you
check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then
leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the retum, then enter -0- on
the applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part I

1a Form 990 check here P b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) o 1b 1,171,588
2a Form 990-EZ check here P> D b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line 9) L B B 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here P I:I b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22) n ] B o B 3b
4a Form 990-PF check here P D b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line 5) B B 4b
5a Form 8868 check here P D b Balance Due (Form 8868, line3c) T 5b

Part Il Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer
Under penallies of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above organization and that | have examined a copy of the
organization's 2019 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they
are true, correct, and complete. | further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the
organization's electronic retum. | consent to allow my intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic retumn originator (ERO)
to send the organization's return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of
the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c) the date of any refund, If applicable, |
authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) entry to the
financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization's federal taxes owed on this
return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial
Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (setttement) date. | also authorize the financial institutions
involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and
resolve issues related to the payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the organization's
electronic return and, if applicable, the organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal.

Officer's PIN: check one box only
| authorize _ BLOOM AND STREIT LLP wentermy PN NN -5y signatre

ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but
do not enter all zeros

on the organization's tax year 2019 electronically filed retum. If | have indicated within this retum that a copy of the retum is
being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | also authorize the aforementioned
ERO to enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

As an officer of the organization, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization's tax year 2019 electronically filed return,
If I have indicated within this retumn that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of
the IRS Fed/State program, | will enter my PIN on the retum’s disclosure consent screen.

Officer's signatiura » Date P 04 /2 2 / 21
Part lil Certification and Authentication
ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification
number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. [

Do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2019 electronically filed return for the organization
indicated above. | confirm that | am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modemized e-File (MeF)
Information for Authorized IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns.

y _ WILLIAM J RANK bae » _04/22/21

ERQO's signature

ERO Must Retain This Form — See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form. Form 8879-EO (o1s)
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Form 990 (2019) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 2
© Partlll: Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Il v

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

PROVIDES GRANTS TO LEGAL SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS THAT DELIVER LEGAL

ASSISTANCE TO THE POOR AND DISADVANTAGED
FELLOWSHIPS FOR LAW SCHOOL STUDENTS.

~ THE GRANTS ARE ISSUED TO SPONSOR

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? L L .
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

|:| Yes No

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services? ) B B B B B
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

_|___|YesNo

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

594,849

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of §

430,617 ) (Revenue § )

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
N/AL
4c (Code: ) (Expenses § including grants of $ ) (Reverue $ )
N/A
4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
{Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses P 594,849
Form 990 (2019)
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CQUAL 04/19/2021 1:12 PM

Form 990 (2019) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 3
. Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? if “Yes,”
complete Schedule A B 11 X
2 Is the organization reqmred to complete Schedule B Schedule of Conrnbutors (see instructions)? 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part | 3 X
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying achvmes or have a sectlon 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il . 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5). or 501(c)(8) organization that receives membersh|p dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure Y8-197 If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Fart Il ) 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part | . . o 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservahon easement including easements to preserve open space
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes ” complete Schedule D, Part Il - 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or cther similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Iff L 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV ] 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor- restncted endowments
or in quasi endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V e 10 X
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D Pans VI
VI, VIII, 1X, or X as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule D, Part VI . Imal X
b Did the organization report an amount for |nvestments—other securmes in Part X line 12, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Vil D ) 11b X
¢ Did the organizalion report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, Ilne 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 if "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Vil L 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX R B 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabiiities in Part X, fine 257 if "Yes,” complete Scheau/e D, Panx ) B . |iie X
f Did the organizalion's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X . B 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts X and XII . i | 23| X
b Was the organization |nc|uded in consolldated |ndependent audlted ﬁnan0|at statements for the tax year’7 If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xil is optional | 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? - - y - 14a b4
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? Iif “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts | and IV B ) 14b X
15  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other asmstance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV B B 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV o - - |1L16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundralsmg services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions) N 17
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Il e e 18 X
19  Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule G, Part il . . ; : ; 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facmtles’? If ’Ves complete Schedule H I 20a X
b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retum? ~ - | 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Parl IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts and Il . . ) ) . 21 | X

DAA Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-370859¢6 Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes | No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts | and Il o - _ . . 22 X

23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J 123 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue wrth an outstandlng pnncrpal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f “Yes,” answer lines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25a oo - e . T X
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? ) . | 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? | 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of issuer for bonds outstandlng at any time dunng the year’? = T ...\ |
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess beneﬁt
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | ... |Z26a X

b s the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person ina pnor
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | R . |25b X
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X Ilne 5 or 22, for reoelvables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il 12 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part ll] - | R i T - 4 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part
IV instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? if

"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partlv o | 288 X
A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV B L . |.28b X
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If
“Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV |28 X
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes,” complete Scheduem | 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part | I A1 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? if "Yes,"”
complete Schedule N, Part Il R - 7 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entlty dlsregarded as separate from the organlzatlon under Regulatrons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part | e e e 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule R Part ll III
orlV,andPartV,ine 1 . ’ 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meanmg of section 512(b)( 13)7 B ——— S 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, ine2 | 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Pant V, line 2 o L T— 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a reIated organrzatlon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI - 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
197 Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. 38 X
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V -
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -O- if not applicable | ) 1a | O
Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable B ib | 0
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? ... .. ... ... . Y N S e S S ) AR e PR 1c | X

DAA Form 990 (2019
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Form 990 (2019) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 5§
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (conlinued)
Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of VWWage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a | 18
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? B } 2b | X
Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file {(see instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b If “Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country p e NS Eeee | " .
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a X
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
If “Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? o] 6a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? " 6b
7  Organizations that may receive deductlble contrlbutlons under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? R B m ! - N » - 7a
b If “Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file Form 8282? - e - - - 7c
d If "Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 fled dunng the year B B B B . I 7d I
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . ) 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? } 79
h | the organization received a coniribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? | 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 cop et e s S
b Did the sponsoring orgarizalion make a distibution to a donor, donoi advisor, or related persun’? s s pire e i v e 19D
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIi, line 12 TIPS I ||
b Gross receipts, included on Form 930, Part Vill, line 12, for public use of club facrlrtres " 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders o N 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
::gnlnnf amounts due or received from ihnm\ 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts Is the organlzatlon ﬁllng Form 990 in Ireu of Form 104172 ) " 12a
b If "Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year - N | 12b |
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? ) 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans ) » B . B 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reserves on hand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanmng services dunng the tax year7 » N 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No," provide an explanation on Schedule O ) 14b
15 s the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute paymenlt(s) during the year? B B ] ) B B ) 15 X
If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If “Yes." complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

Fom 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EQUAIL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 6
Part Vi Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI = R <, @_
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year B 1a 5
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent 1b | 5

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a busmess reIatlonshlp W|th
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? R ) " mEEmm 0w 2

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? - )

4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?

6  Did the organization have members or stockholders? e P e e e P
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the goveming body? » . v 7a
b Are any govemnance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? 7b X
8  Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetlngs held or wntten actlons undertaken dunng the year by the followmg
a The governing body? S O Rl T e 3 DL A D i 2 S s i e W e 8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? B o . N 8b | X

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organizalion's mailing address? If "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O i 9 X

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Intemal Revenue Code. )

ba

(3]

o o b [
b el el e

b

Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affliates? o ) : 10a X
b If "Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body befare filing the form’? B 11a X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? if “No,” go to line 13 - | 12a
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annuaIIy |nterests that could glve rise to conﬂlcts’7 12b
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the palicy? /f “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how this was done L ) L N o 12¢
13  Did the organization have a written whistieblower policy? L B 13
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destrucllon pollcy’7 o ) B ) 14
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official e . T
b Other officers or key employees of the organizaton e R ) B . 15b X
If “Yes"” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). ' -
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? - |16a X
b If "Yes,” did the organization follow a wntten pollcy or procedure requnrlng the organlzatlon to evaluate |ts
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arangements? ... . ... ... .. i b v s geipsEenn 16b
Section C. Disclosure
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed » CA, CT,DC, FL,IL,MA,MD, ME,MI, MN,NC, NY, OH
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website Another's website Upon request |:] Other (explain on Schedule O)
19  Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its goveming documents, conflict of interest policy, and
financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records P
DAN RUBEN 13540 EAST BOUNDARY RD
MIDLOTHIAN VA 23112 804-744-4200

DAA Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 7
Part VlIi. Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl T D
Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.
e List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee.”
e List the organization's five current highest compensated emplayees (nther than an officer, director, tnistee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.
o List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
o List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any cument officer, director, or trustee.
(A) (8) (] (D) (E) {F)
Name and litle Average Paosilion Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours (do not check more than one compensation compensation of other
per week box, unless person is bolh an from the from related compensation
{list any ofiicer and a direciorfirusiee) organization organizaiions from the
hours for P B = =7 (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) organization and
related ; El 3 % 2 a% S related organizations
organizations 5% Ele 3 % @ 3
below 3‘“—’ § g |°g
dotted fine) =l b 3
szl |®] @
ol T %
(1) DAN RUBEN
- .40.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 0.00 |X 102,804 0 0
(2) SONIA MARQUEZ
B . ....2-00
DIRECTOR 0.00 |X 0 0 0
(3)ELISE RIVERS
2200
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
4 LISA TRACY
RN DU 08
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
(5) DAVID SANTACROCHE
— i 2.00
PRESIDENT 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
(6) LARRY ZABAR
2.00
TREASURER 0.00 |X X 0 0 0
@)
{8)
(&)
(10)
(11)

Form 990 (019
DAA
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Form 990 (2019) FEQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 8
Pa 1l Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued
y Employ P
®) ) ) ©) ) ")
Name and lille Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours (do nol check more than one compensation compensation of other
per week box, unfess per_son isiboti s from the from related compensalion
(list any officer and a directorftrustee) organization organizations from the
hours for o5 5 g = T (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) organization and
related g{% % 2 2 3 related organizations
organizations 8 g =513 %_ E e
below ST & 5 1°8
dotted line) gl = 3 g
] § g
8
1b Subtotal . , - > 102,804 o
¢ Total from contmuation sheets to Part VII Sectlon A s P
d__Total (add lines 1b and 1c) . » 102,804

2 Total number of individuals (mcludmg but not Ilmlted to lhose Ilsted above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 1

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? if "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual L

4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensatlon and other compensatlon from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? if “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

individual

5 Did any per‘s'on lllsted on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated orgamzatlon or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 qf

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

A
Name and bLs!ness address

B
Description of services

Yes | No
3 X
4 X
5 X
A rlZCJ an

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100.000 of compensation from the organization B

DAA

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 9
Part VIIL  Statement of Revenue
Check if Scheduie C contains a response or note to any line in this Part Vil & (]
Totalur\e’venue Relaled E,} exempt Unr(e?;led RevenuéD?axcluded
function revenue business revenue from tax under
seclions 512-514
£48| 1a Federated campaigns 1a
gé b Membership dues 1b
gq ¢ Fundraising events 1c
®.8 d Related organizations 1d
#.E| e Govemment grants (contributions) 1e 10,000
ég f oAl alf}erI contributions, gifts, grants,
ég and similar amounts not included above 1f 1,161 , 548
Tl 9 Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 19
3 &  h Total. Addlines 1a-1f_______ > 1,171,548
|Business Code
g|®
[ V)
(% C
§3 4
g e
f All other program service revenue
g Total. Add lines 2a—2f .3 i >
3  Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) | meme B 40 40
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds >
5 Royalties ..., .. — ; |
(i} Real (i} Personal
6a Gross rents 6a
b Less: rental expenses | 6b
¢ Rental inc. or {loss) 6c
d Net rental income or (loss) »
7a Gross amount from () Secunties (i) Other
sales of assets
other than inventory | 7@
s b Less: cost or other
§ basis and sales exps. | 7h
&1 c Ganor(oss) | 7c
-q;, d Net gain or (loss) .. ... > S
& | 8a Gross income from fundraising events
(not includng $
of contributions reported on line 1c).
See Part IV, line 18 Ba
b less: direct expenséé R 8h
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events | 2
9a Gross income from gaming activities.
See Part IV, line 19 9a
b Less: direct expenses 9b
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities |
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances 10a
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory =P
i Business Code
§g 11a
55 b
"% d Al other revenue
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d . »
12 Total revenue. See inslructions . » 1,171,588 40 0 0

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 10
Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a respense or note to any line in this Part IX B
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total (eizaenses Progra:nBlservice Managé?enk and Fun&;r[;)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIil. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Granls and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic govemments. See Part IV, line 21 430 7 617 430 7 617
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign govemments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members .
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 102,804 51,402 25,701 25,701
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages 279,531 66,257 40,250 173,024
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9 Other employee benefits 18,624 9,935 5, 985 2,694
10 Payroll taxes o 33,789 10,148 5,728 17,913
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
bleg .. 12,215 12,215
¢ Accounting 7,884 7,884
d LObOYING. .. saiuzaiiiin v sun i cinibasi o
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. (Ifline 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, lisl line 11g expenses on Schedule O,) B
12 Advertising and promotion 8,561 4,280 4,281
13 Office expenses - 4,323 1,004 FECHRD) 1,004
14 Information technology 34,397 11,465 11,466 11,466
15 Royaltes
16 Ocoupaney 24,990 8,330 8,330 8,330
17 Travel
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 21 21
20 Interest
21 Payments to affliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization
23 Insurance 1,968 656 6206 656
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a  MERCHANT AND BANK FEES 25,799 25,799
b MAILING LIST 15,645 15,645
¢  TELEPHONE 10,082 3,361 3,361 3,360
d PRINTING & POSTAGE 9,374 1,573 1,574 6,227
e Al other expenses 343 80 183 80
25 _ Total functional expenses. Add fines 1 through 24e 1,020,967 594,849 155,737 270,381
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign
fundraising solicitation. Check here P> if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

DAA

Form 990 019
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Form 990 (2019)  EQUAL, JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 11
Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X i i D_
A B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 1
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 139,830( 2 233,253
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 61,845( 3 116,928
4 Accounts receivable, net B ] ) 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any curmrent or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or tounder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controiied entity or family member ul any of lhese paisons 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as def ned
a under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 6
§ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< | 8 Inventories for sale or use 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges _ 1,659] 9 2,646
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or r\thpr
basis, Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a
b Less: accumulated depreciation g e o 10b 10c
i1 invesiments—publicly iraded securities " ik 150,000
2 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, hne 11 o 12
13  Investments—program-related. See Part IV, tine 11 13
14 Intangible assets N 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 799] 15 3,459
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) 204,133]| 16 506,286
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 19,553]| 17 25,229
18 Grants payable 488,331 i8 401,987
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond Ilabllmes 20
21 Escrow or custodial account I|ab|||ty Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
v 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
E= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
E\, controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
|23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unielated third parties 3
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24 82,200
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related lh|rd
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D 25 150,000
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 thromh 25 507,884 26 659,416
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here P .
g and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
5|27 Net assets without donor restrictions -347,732]| 27 -602,080
@ |28 Net assets with donor restrictions 43,981 28 448,950
k2 Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here »> D
2 and complete lines 29 through 33.
E 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 29
‘8‘ 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equment fund : 30
& |31 Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds : 31
B (32 Total netassets or fund balances ... -303,751] 32 -153,130
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... ... . 204,133] 33 506,286

DAA
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Page 12

Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

©C 0O ~N OO R WN

-
(=]

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 R A e "
Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A))
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments

Donated services and use of facilities

Investment expenses

Prior period adjustments o

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O) o
Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
32, column (B))

1,171,588

1,020,967

150,621

-303,751

W (N[ | |b (W IN =

-
o

-153,130

Part XH Financial Sfétements ah.d Réporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Xl

[

1

2a

b

[of

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |_—_| Cash Accrual |___] Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in
Schedule O.

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[:] Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? )
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis D Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O,

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133?

required audil or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audils ..

Yes | No

2b | X

2c | X

3a X

3b

DAA

Form 990 (2019)
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

OMB No. 1545-0047

Complete if the organization is a section 501{c}{3}) organization or a section 4947{a){1} nonexempt charitable trust.

2019

Depariment of Ihe Treasury » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
i " P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596
Part | Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 | _| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170{b)(1)(A)(i).
2 | | A school described in section 170(b)(1)}(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
3 | | Ahospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170({b)(1)(A)(iii).
4 | | A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state: ) - - o - )
5 r‘ An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
___section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)
6 | | A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
7 || An crganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmenta! unit or from the general public
__ described in section 170{b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
8 | | A community trust described in section 170(b}(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
S || A agricultural research organization described in section 170{b}{1){A){ix) operated in conjunclion with a land-grant caliege
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
__ university: S 2 Y S .
10 m An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross

receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Il.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to camy out the purposes
of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.
a I:l Type . A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), iypically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.
b Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization{(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.
c D Type Ili functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.
d Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.
e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type IHI
functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.
f Enter the number of supported organizations N B ‘:I
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (i} EIN {iii) Type of organizalion (iv) !s the organization {v) Amount of monetary {vi) Amount of
organization (described on lines 1-10 listed in your governing supporl (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instruclions) instruclions)
Yes No
(A)
(B)
(€}
(D)
(E)
Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2019 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 2
Part Il Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A){vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II1.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  » (a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 {e) 2019 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")
2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
3  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
4  Total. Add lines 1 through 3 )
5  The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f)
6 Public support. Subfract line 5 lrorn line 4
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  » {a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 {f) Total
7  Amounts from line 4 =
8  Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources
9  Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on .
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part Vi) .
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 Al
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructons) l 12
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here .

Section C. Computation of Public Suppcft Percentage

14
15
16a

17a

18

%

Public support percentage for 2019 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . o B B B 14
Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part I, line 14 ... L1s

%

33 1/3% support test—2019. if the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

33 1/3% support test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 163 and I|ne 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part Vi how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization . — ) e . . e A AT e S A
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line

15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.

Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization .
Private foundation. If the orgamzatlon dxd not check a box on I|ne 13 16a 16b, 17a or 17b check th|s box and see
instructions

> []
> []

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2019 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 3
Part Ili Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Compiete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part i or if the organization failed to quaiily under Pait il.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P (a) 2015 {b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any "unusual granls.") 70,354 63,819 42,793 1,047,010 1,171,548 2,395,524
2 Gross receipls from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
fumished in any activity that is related to the ) . )
organization's tax-exempt purpose 13,871 280432 12202 89 L) 21,990
3 Gross receipts from activities Lhat are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513
4  Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
5  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit io the
organization without charge
6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 84,225 92,251 58,358 1,047,099 1,171,588 2,453,521
Ta Amounis inciuded on iines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year 5,000 29,048 5,000 5,467 44,515
¢ Add lines 7aand 7b 5,000 29,048 5,000 5,467 44,515
8  Public support. (Sub!ract Ilne 7c from
line 6.) 2,409,006
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P (a) 2015 (b) 2016 {c) 2017 (d) 2018 {e) 2019 (f) Total
9  Amounts from line 6 . 84,225 92,251 58,358 1,047,099 1,171,588 2,453,521
10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources 10,336 11,856 13,158 35,350
b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975
¢ Add lines 10a and 10b 10,336 11,856 13,158 35,350
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly camied on ..
12 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Partviy
13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and 12.) 94,561 104,107 71,516 1,047,099 3.-171,588 2,488,871
14  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here » D
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column-(f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 g96.79 %
16 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part lll, line 45 .. ... ... .o oo 6 92.43 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2019 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 17 1%
18  Investment income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part lll, line 17 18 1%
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2019. If the organization did not check the box on l|ne 14 and I|ne 15 is more than 33 1/3% and I|ne
17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .. >
b 33 1/3% support tests—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 193, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
fine 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization > D
20 Private foundation. If the organizalion did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions > D

DAA
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Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-E7) 2019 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 4
Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part |. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12¢ of Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? /f “No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain, 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a

b  Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination, 3b
¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization™)? /f
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part |, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,"
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ij) the reasons for each such action;
(iij) the authonty under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document), S5a
b Type |l or Type ll only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document? 5h
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ji) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (i) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organizations supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity

with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77 !
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? if "Yes,” provide detail in Part V. 9c

10a Was the organization subject fo the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? if “Yes," answer 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business haldings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business_holdings.) 10b

Schedule A {(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page §
Part IV Supporting Organizations (confinued)
Yes No
11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b
¢ A 35% controlled entlity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If "Yes" to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations
Yes No
1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority ot the organization's directors or trustees at all tmes during the
tax year? If "No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1
2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supeivised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2
Section C. Type ii Supporting Organizations
Yes No
1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? /f "No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s). 1
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations
Yes No
1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fith month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (jii} copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1
2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? /f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working reiationship with the supporied organization(s). 2
3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment poalicies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part Vi the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard. 3
Section E. Type lll Functionally-Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The arganization is the parent of each of its supported arganizations. Complete line 2 below.
c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).
2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes No

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? /f "Yes," explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
aclivities but for the organization’s involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of ils supporiled organizations? /f “Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this reqard, 3b

DAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EQUAIL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 6
Part V Type [l Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 DCheck here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integraled supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
(optional)
1 Net short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
5 Depreciation and depletion 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)
7 Other expenses (see instructions)
8 Adjusted Net Income (sublract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year N ca
{optional)
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a__Average monthly value of securities 1a
b Average monthly cash balances 1b
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assels ic
d Total {add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):
2 Acquisition indebledness applicable to non-exempl-use assets 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4
5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subiract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Mulliply line 5 by .035. 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8
Section C - Distributable Amount : : Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Seclion A, line 8, Column A) 1
2 Enter 85% of line 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6
7 |:|Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 7
Part V Type Il Non-Functionally integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (conlinued)

Section D - Distributions Current Year

1 Amounls paid lo supported organizalions to accomplish exempt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
arganizalions, in excess of income from aclivity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempl purposes of supported organizalions
Amounts paid to acquire exemplt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI), See instruclions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through &.

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part V). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6

16 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

DB N[ |

w0

Crcbise I Nictcib:
©eCuion C - visiriou

1 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6
2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019
(reasonable cause required-explain in Part VI). See

instructions.
3 Excess distributions carryover, if any. to 2019
a From 2014
b From 2015
c From 2016 . ...
d From 2017
e From 2018
f Total of lines 3a through e
q Applied io underdistributions of prior years
h Applied to 2019 distributable amount
i Carryover from 2014 not applied (see instruclions)
j Remainder. Sublract lines 3¢, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

FEY

Distributions for 2019 from
Seclion D, line 7: $

a_ Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b _Applied to 2019 distributable amount

¢ _Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2019, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater lhan zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2019, Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part V1. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8  Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2015 .

Excess from 2016 ... ... . ... ... -

Excess from 2017

Excess from 2018

Excess from 2019

(- =50 e I = ]

Schedule A (Form 990 or 390-EZ) 2019

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2019 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 8
Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il line 17a or 17b; Part
lil, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

DAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OMB No. 15450047
(Form 990) » Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, 201 9
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.qov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
{a) Donor advised funds (b} Funds and other accounts

1 Total number at end of year

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

4  Aggregate value at end of year o R

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? o - I:] Yes I:l No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private benefit? ) ) e . . D Yes D No
Part Il Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a cerfified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements b s . . . B o 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements = - . o 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) B ) 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a
historic structure fisted in the National Register o ) ) 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year p»

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located »
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? oo D Yes [:I No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservalion easements during the year

>3 T
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)

and section 170(hN(@)B)(H)? - - [] Yes [ ] No

9 In Part XIli, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

: Part lll . Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part XIll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 |
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X ] ) |
2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 > 3
b _Assets included in Form 990, Part X | )

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 EQUAIL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 2
Part lll Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
colleclion items (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d H Loan or exchange program

b Scholarly research e Other
c Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part
Xl
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's colleclion? fa s D Yes D No
Part IV Escrow and Cusiodiai Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? ., N ] e D Yes D No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table:

Amount

¢ Beginning balance _ A . 1c
d Additions during the year AN N MR 1d
e
f

Distrbutions during the year : S S T e T M Dl ie
Ending balance T S A T AN 1
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, fine 21, for escrow or custodial account fiability? El Yes | | No
b If "Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIll. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part Xl
Part V Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

{a) Current year (b) Prior year (¢) Two years back {d) Three years back (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance
b Contributions o
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and
losses e
d Grants or scholarships _
e Other expenditures for facilities and
programs
f Administrative expenses
g End of year balance
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as: - - ,
a Board designated or quasi-endowment p %
b Permanent endowment P> . %
¢ Term endowment» %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
arganization by: Yes | No

(i) Unrelated organizations L ) B N 1 3a(i)
(i) Related organizations ) o N i y B o [3afi)
b If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedute R? : 3b
4 Describe in Part X!l the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property {a) Cost or other basis {b) Cost or olher basis {c) Accumulated {d) Book value
(inveslment) {other) deprecialion

1a Land

b Buildings - ]

¢ Leasehold improvements ) o0

d Equipment _ _ 29,801 29,801

e Other 29,801 29,801

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must egual Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10¢.) b

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 3
Part VIl Investments — Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

{a) Description of security or category {b) Book value (¢} Method of valuation:

(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives
(2) Closely held equity interests
(3) Other

A

&)

©

)

(E)

)

©

(H) st R T SRS
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12) P

Part VIl Investments — Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a} Descriplion of invesimenl {b) Book value {c) Method of valuation:

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
_(6)
(7
(8)
(2
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) . | 4
Part IX Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
4
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15) . .. .. .. . . . . ... .. ... . . . »
Part X | Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,

line 25.
1. {a) Description of liability {b} Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
(2) SBA LOAN PAYARLE 150,000
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7
(8)
[©)]
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25) M sme w > 150,000
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIlI, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII m_

DAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2012 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 4
Part Xl Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part iV, line 12a.
Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 1,171,588
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities 2b
¢ Recoveries of prior year grants 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 . 3 L), 588
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, line 7b 4da
b Other (Describe in Part XIl.) 4b
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b R ) ) 4c
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, fine 12.) G T AT 5 1,171,588
Part Xli  Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 1,020,967
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part [X, line 25:
a Donated services and use of facilities 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
¢ Other losses 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 - _ e e mm 3 1,020,967
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VilI, line 7b 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 4b
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b } o s 4c
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) 5 1,020,967

Part Xlll  Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Pant V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part X|, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
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Schedule D {Form 990) 2019

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Page 5

Part Xlll Supplemental Information (continued)

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ QIAA No 15450047
(Form 990 or 990-E2) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 201 9
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury » Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4D - ALL OTHER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

PROVIDES GRANTS TO LEGAL SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS THAT DELIVER LEGAL

ASSISTANCE TO THE POOR AND DISADVANTAGED. THE GRANTS ARE ISSUED TO SPONSOR

FELLOWSHIPS FOR LAW SCHOOL STUDENTS.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 11B - ORGANIZATION'S PROCESS TO REVIEW FORM 990

PRIOR TO FILING, THE DIRECTORS REVIEW THE FORM 990

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 12C - ENFORCEMENT OF CONFLICTS POLICY

IN THEIR STATUS. THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REVIEWS THESE POLICIES WITH TEHE

 BOARD.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 15A - COMPENSATION PROCESS FOR TOP OFFICIAL

. THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMPENSATION IS REVIEWED ANNUALLY WITH THE BOARD,

AN INDEPENDENT BODY.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 17 - OTHER STATES WHERE COPY OF RETURN IS FILED

PENNSYLVANIA, RHODE ISLAND, VIRGINIA, WISCONSIN

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19 - GOVERNING DOCUMENTS DISCLOSURE EXPLANATION

NO DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)
DAA
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